West Devon Planning &
Licensing Committee

Public Document Pack

West Devon

Borough
Council
Title: Agenda
Date: Tuesday, 7th February, 2017
Time: 10.00 am
Venue: Chamber - Kilworthy Park
Full Members: Chairman Clir Sanders
Vice Chairman ClIr Parker
Members: Clir Baldwin Cllr Mott
Cllr Benson Cllr Moyse
Cllr Cann OBE ClIr Pearce
Cllr Hockridge Clir Roberts

Interests -
Declaration and
Restriction on
Participation:

Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any
disclosable pecuniary interest not entered in the Authority's
register or local non pecuniary interest which they have in any
item of business on the agenda (subject to the exception for
sensitive information) and to leave the meeting prior to
discussion and voting on an item in which they have a
disclosable pecuniary interest.

Commiittee
administrator:

Member.Services@swdevon.gov.uk




Page No

1. Apologies for absence

2. Declarations of Interest

Members are invited to declare any personal or disclosable
pecuniary interests, including the nature and extent of such
interests they may have in any items to be considered at this
meeting.

[If Councillors have any questions relating to predetermination,
bias or interests in items on this Agenda, then please contact the
Monitoring Officer in advance of the meeting}

3. Items Requiring Urgent Attention

To consider those items which, in the opinion of the Chairman,
should be considered by the Meeting as matters of urgency (if

any).

4. Confirmation of Minutes 1-4
Meeting held on 10 January 2017

5. Planning Applications and Enforcement Reports

To see Letters of Representation and further supplementary
information relating to any of the planning applications on the
agenda, please select the following link and enter the relevant
Reference number: http://westdevon.gov.uk/searchlanding

(a) 2686/16/FUL 5

Land adjacent to Fernside, Crease Lane, Tavistock,
PL19 S8EW

Residential development for 4No. detached
dwellings with integral garages, external parking
and new access off Crease Lane

(b) 2323/16/0PA 19 - 40
Land South of North Road, Lifton

18

Outline application (with some matters reserved)
for residential development (Class C3) of up to 20
dwellings with vehicular and pedestrian access to
North Road, car parking, associated landscaping
and infrastructure, public open space and Accessible
Natural Greenspace - External access not reserved

6. Planning Appeals Update 41 - 42


http://westdevon.gov.uk/searchlanding

Page No

7. Planning Performance Indicators

To follow



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 4
At a Meeting of the PLANNING & LICENSING COMMITTEE held at the
Council Chamber, Council Offices, Kilworthy Park, Drake Road,
TAVISTOCK on TUESDAY the 10th day of JANUARY 2017 at 10.00am

Present: Cllr P R Sanders — Chairman
ClIr G Parker — Vice-Chairman
Clir R E Baldwin Clir M J R Benson
Clir W G Cann OBE Clir L J G Hockridge
Clir C Mott Clir D E Moyse
Clir T G Pearce Clir A Roberts

COP Lead Development Management (PW)
Solicitor (SN)

Specialist Development Management (TF)
Specialist Development Management (MJ)
Specialist Manager (DP)

COP Lead Environmental Health (IL)
Specialist Democratic Services (KT)

DCC Highways (PT)

In attendance: Clirs J Evans, N Jory, A F Leech, J Moody, R F D
Sampson and J Yelland

*P&L 47 DECLARATION OF INTEREST
Members were invited to declare any interests in the items of business
to be considered and the following were made:

Clir T G Pearce declared a personal interest in all applications, by virtue
of being a Member of the Devon Building Control Partnership. He
remained in the meeting and took part in the debate and vote on each
item;

Clir A Roberts declared a personal interest in application 00938/2015:
Erection of two residential dwellings — Land adjacent to Castleford,
Castle Road, Okehampton by virtue of knowing the applicant. She
remained in the meeting and took part in the debate and vote thereon.

*P&L 48 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES
The Minutes of the Planning and Licensing Committee Meeting held on
13t December 2016 were confirmed and signed by the Chairman as a
correct record.

*P&L 49 PLANNING, LISTED BUILDING, TREE PRESERVATION ORDER
AND ENFORCEMENT REPORTS
The Committee considered the applications prepared by the
Development Management Specialists and considered also the
comments of Town and Parish Councils together with other
representations received, which were listed within the presented agenda
reports and summarised below, and RESOLVED:

Page 1



(a) Application No: 1579/16/VAR Ward: Milton Ford
Site Address: Lamber Hey, 12 Venn Hill, Milton Abbot, PL19 ONY

Variation of condition No.2 (Approved Plans) of planning consent
01830/2011 to allow for minor material amendments

RECOMMENDATION: Conditional Approval

COMMITTEE DECISION: Defer for further information following the site
inspection

(b) Application No: 2686/16/FUL Ward: Tavistock North

Site Address: Land adjacent to Fernside, Crease Lane,
Tavistock PL19 8EW

Residential development for 4 No. detached dwellings with integral
garages, external parking and new access off Crease Lane

Speakers included: Objector — Mrs Allen: Supporter — Mr Elliot Jones:
Town Council — Clir Dr Ward: Ward Members — Clirs J Moody and J
Sheldon

RECOMMENDATION: Delegate to COP Lead Development
Management in consultation with the Chairman of the Planning and
Licensing Committee to approve subject to completion of a Section 106
legal agreement

COMMITTEE DECISION: Defer for Site Inspection

(c) Application No: 00938/2015 Ward: Okehampton

Site Address: Land adjacent to Castleford, Castle Road,
Okehampton, EX20 1DD

Erection of two residential dwellings

Speakers included: Town Council — Clir A F Leech: Ward Member —
Clir J Yelland

RECOMMENDATION: Conditional Approval

Members discussed this application in detail and referred to the site
inspection, held previously, following which further information had been
sought in relation to the Public Footpath. Members still had concerns
about the impact of the development on the footpath and accepted that
a temporary diversion had been offered but this would necessitate the
need to use steps. Further concerns related to the need for an
archaeological assessment of the site during construction and highway
safety, particularly with vehicles reversing out of the site. The Highways

Officer responded to highways safety concerns by advising that the
age 2



*P&L 50

*P&L 51

*P&L 52

arrangements were commensurate with other properties along Castle
Road and added that an additional clearance had been built in to the
proposed parking bays to give space for additional parallel parking for
visitors to the site and to aid visibility. The Town Council representative
added concerns regarding ecology. Members also had concerns
regarding management of the site during construction, and again it was
agreed that an additional condition should be included. The proposal to
approve the application was PROPOSED, SECONDED and on being
put to the vote declared LOST.

It was then PROPOSED, SECONDED and on being put to the vote
declared CARRIED, that the application be refused for the following
reasons:

The scale, massing and design of the proposed dwellings results in a
cramped form of development with substantial retaining features
required to facilitate the development on this sloping site in a historic
area adjacent to the Okehampton Conservation Area. As such the
proposal would have a detrimental visual impact to the character and
appearance of the area and the harm caused is not outweighed by the
public benefit resulting from the development. The proposal would
therefore be contrary to policy SP18 of the West Devon Core Strategy,
policy H28 of the West Devon Local Plan Review, and the advice
contained within the NPPF.

COMMITTEE DECISION: Refusal

PLANNING APPEALS UPDATE
The Committee received and noted the updated list of Planning Appeals
including enforcement appeals.

PLANNING PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
The COP Lead Development Management presented the Performance
Indicators and outlined the key information for Members consideration.

FEES AND CHARGES FOR 2017/18

Consideration was given to a report that set out the proposals for fees and
charges for 2017/18 for the Planning and Environmental Health services.
The report recommended that the fees and charges for 2017/18 be kept at
the same level as for 21016/17.

It was then RESOLVED:
That the Planning and Licensing Committee approves the proposed
fees and charges set out in Appendix A of the presented report for
the period 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018.
(The Meeting terminated at 11.55 am)

Dated this

Chairman

Page 3



Page 4



Agenda ltem 5a

PLANNING APPLICATION REPORT

Case Officer: Matt Jones Parish: Tavistock Ward: Tavistock North

Application No: 2686/16/FUL

Agent/Applicant: Applicant:
Rogers & Jones Architects Mr G Caldwell

3 The Crescent Cadover
Plymouth 1 Willowby Park
PL1 3AB PL20 6AN

Site Address: Land adjacent to Fernside, Crease Lane, Tavistock, PL19 8EW

Development: Residential development for 4No. detached dwellings with integral garages,
external parking and new access off Crease Lane

Reason taken to Planning Committee: The ward members have requested that the application
be determined by planning committee due to concerns regarding drainage, location and access

) "i\,/

L
S %’/ &
AT

Page 5



Recommendation: Conditional approval subject to completion of s106 agreement
Conditions

Time

Accord with Plans

Materials samples prior to installation

Landscaping plan prior to commencement

Drainage specification prior to commencement
Laying out and completion of vehicle infrastructure prior to commencement of other development
Removal of Permitted Development Rights
Adherence to recommendations of ecological report
Universal condition for land affected by contamination
Verification Report

Unsuspected contamination

Key issues for consideration:
The main issue are the principle of residential development within this location, access to services,

design, visual impact, any impact on ecology or the amenity of neighbouring properties, land
contamination, access and parking and drainage

Site Description:

The application site is formed of two separate parcels of land to the east and west of the third party
dwelling Fernside.

The application site is outside of the Tavistock Development Boundary which is on the other side of
Crease Lane. The Tavistock Viaduct Walk, to the east, is a Local Nature Reserve and a cycle way. The
site is also within the Critical Drainage Area.

Officers understand that there was previously a SHLAA assessment of the site but this considered a
far greater quantum of residential development encompassing the field in its entirety.

The Proposal:

Planning consent is sought for the residential development of 4.no detached dwellings with integral
garages, external parking and a new vehicular access off Crease Lane. The two detached dwellings to
the east are accessed from a new opening using the existing splay serving Fernside and an agricultural
access. A new separate access and splay is proposed to serve the two units to the west of Fernside,
which will involve either moving and/or replacing the existing hedgebanks.

The houses are detached and two storeys, although the upper storey is housed within the large roofs
and with dormers. The dwellings are set into the hillside under dual pitched roofs. The scheme takes
reference from Fernside in the design. The materials palette is natural slate, render with plastic joinery
and rainwater goods. The two larger houses to the west have detached garages with the two other units
having integral garaging.

Consultations:
¢ County Highways Authority
No objection subject to condition — 04/10/2016 - ‘The application site is served by Crease Lane, a

classified road, C704. Its junction with A390 Callington Road is seriously substandard with respect to
alignment, Width and gradient, forming an acute angle at the point of intersection. This access option

Page 6



to the site is not the only alternative, however, as it is quite possible to access the site using Uplands,
which is certainly adequate to accommodate the additional traffic from the four proposed houses. There
are therefore no objections in principle to the proposed development from a highway point of view.

The plans that have been provided in support of the application show no visibility splays at the access
points onto Crease Lane, in spite of the statement in the Design and Access Statement (Section 4.01)
which states that the accesses will maximise the visibility afforded whilst entering / leaving the proposed
parking spaces’, As the application is a full application, the highway authority would expect to see
visibility splays shown on the plans. Visibility splays of 2.4 metres by 33 metres in both directions at the
access to plots 1 and 2 and in the trailing traffic direction to the access to plots 3 and 4 should be
provided. The visibility splay across the frontage of Fernside from the eastern Site is acceptable at
present.

The highway authority reserve the right to be re-consulted once the amended / additional plans have
been provided so that appropriate conditions may be recommended on any permission granted, if
appropriate’

06/12/2016 - The proposed accesses to Crease Lane have now been provided with visibility splays
commensurate with the prevailing speed of vehicles in Crease Lane as requested in the highway
authority's previous response and the plans are acceptable to the highway authority.

e County Education Authority

No objection — request £13,329.50 in obligations towards primary school infrastructure
e Environmental Health Section

No objection subject to condition

e WDBC Ecology

No objection subject to conditions — 1 have reviewed the Preliminary Ecological Appraisal and am
largely in support of the conclusions of the report. | also note the further email from the consultant
ecologist (the ecologist being incorrect within this email — the Tavistock Viaduct Walk is a designated
Local Nature Reserve — this highlighting a weakness in the submitted report — a records search should
have been made via the DBRC which would have informed the ecologist of this designation and the
various other protected species records from the adjacent LNR — this ecologist has previously been
advised that he should be undertaking such records searches to support planning applications for
exactly this type of reason — I will reiterate this separately to the ecologist — notwithstanding this, | am
satisfied that in this case this omission does not undermine the conclusions of the report).

The key requirement will be to retain the north-south hedgerow/tree line which divides the two fields
and the eastern boundary of the site (the Tavistock Viaduct Walk LNR), and ensure that new residents
do not interfere with the effectiveness of these as habitat corridors and landscape features.

This section of Crease Lane is already subject to streetlighting however it is well-established that bats
use the adjacent Viaduct Walk LNR for commuting and foraging, and | strongly suspect that this extends
to the edge of the tree line which forms the eastern boundary of this proposed development site.

It is important that the proposal does not lead to significant additional illumination of the tree line to the
east (i.e. the edge of the Viaduct Walk LNR). To this end you may wish to introduce controls on external
lighting for units 02 and 04 — i.e. prior to installation of any external lighting requiring approval of the
LPA.

I also would like to see some method of ensuring the new residents of Unit 4 were prevented from
interfering (i.e. cutting) the tree line forming the eastern boundary of the site. This boundary (at least for

Page 7



the last 10 years) has not been subject to any significant cutting. Whilst | acknowledge that the
landowner is entitled to cut any overhanging branches, to do so would detract from the value of this
boundary, and it would be regrettable to see this change by virtue of the proposed dwellings. | can think
of 3 possible options:

A post and wire fence set back 1m from the existing fence line which would discourage the new
residents from seeking to cut this boundary.

Extending the new planting proposed in the southeastern corner along the entirety of the eastern
boundary — providing some strengthening/buffering of the tree line to the east.
Apply a restrictive condition/include in particulars for this unit?

I note the inclusion of new Devon hedge on the northern boundaries of the proposed dwellings which
are welcome — these would be even more beneficial if the Devon hedge was extended along the back
of Fernside (!).

Recommendation: No objection subject to conditions securing:

No external lighting on Units 2 and 4 unless agreed prior to installation by the LPA

Protection of the tree line (forming part of the Tavistock Viaduct Walk LNR) which forms the eastern
boundary of the site using one of the three suggested options above.

Adherence to measure within section 7 of the ecology report.’

e Tavistock Town Council

Objection — ‘Outside settlement boundary, concerns regarding additional traffic on a very narrow road,
on a greenfield site’

Representations:

30 letters of representation have been received at the time of writing this report. Concerns raised within
the submitted letters are summarised as follows:

The development will have a detrimental impact upon highways safety
Should be considered within context of other development within Tavistock
The development will adversely impact ecology

The loss of hedgerows and banks is unacceptable

The site is outside of the Development Boundary

Will erode rural character and tranquillity

Will prejudice integrity of walking and cycling routes

The design is out of keeping

Will dominate the streetscene and adjacent properties

Will lead to overlooking of adjacent properties

Could lead to flooding issues at neighbouring sites

Could lead to further development

Housing has already been approved at alternative sites

Could affect tourism within the town

Will not meet housing needs

Will not provide affordable housing

There are inaccuracies within the submission

Relevant Planning History

00283/2015 - Pre-application enquiry for erection of two detached dwellings — Officer support
forthcoming (covering west element of site)

Page 8



Analysis
Principle of development

The application site is outside of, but adjacent to, the Tavistock Development Boundary, leading to
conflict with the relevant housing policies which seek to direct housing within such boundaries.

However, national government policy does not necessarily follow the same agenda and requires
authorities to instead avoid homes which are in ‘isolated’ countryside locations. In addition, paragraph
14 of the National Planning Policy Framework seeks the presumption in favour of sustainable
development which for decision taking means:

e approving development proposals that accord with the development plan without delay; and
e where the development plan is absent, silent or relevant policies are out-of-date, granting
permission unless:

— any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the
benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole; or
— specific policies in this Framework indicate development should be restricted.

The site relates well to the existing settlement of Tavistock and could not be considered isolated. It is,
in the opinion of officers, within walking distance to bus stops, the town centre, the wealth of facilities
within it, and the site is not unsustainable with regard to access to services. In any case, officers also
acknowledge that the site is within close proximity to hundreds of households within this part of
Tavistock, and the proposed dwellings will maintain the same degree of access to services.

Officers therefore accept the principle of residential development of the site.
Impact on rural character

The street scene has a suburban character. Officers note the presence of the two detached dwellings
on the northern side of Crease Lane, and also note that the scheme represents, in effect, the infilling of
the existing spaces between these properties and the residential development further to the east. For
this reason, the proposal is not considered by officers to represent the harmful and inappropriate
incursion of the built environment into the countryside, but the consolidation of residential development
on this part of the northern side of Crease Lane.

Officers acknowledge that, due to the topography of the land, the open character of the two sites allows
some views across Tavistock and the surrounding countryside, but these views are only seen fleetingly
from the public realm as one travels up and down this part of Crease Lane.

Breaks in the screening when walking along the old railway line do allow views towards the field but to
the lower half, and the proposed development will not be readily seen from this important public
footpath. If glimpsed the proposal will be seen in conjunction with the existing development on Crease
Lane. Future development further down the hillside would be seen from the railway walk and would
have different implications regarding the impact on rural character.

Officers understand that there was previously a SHLAA assessment of the site but this considered a
far greater quantum of residential development encompassing the field in its entirety. The outcome of
the SHLAA, which did register some potential issues regarding character, access and drainage, is
therefore attributed less weight, as the strategic residential development of the entire field has
significantly different planning implications than the scheme for four dwellings contained along the
roadside, as is now before the Council.

Overall, for these reasons, the residential development of the sites, in the density and specific locations
proposed, is considered to lead to a small scale and limited loss of rural character which is outweighed

Page 9



by the social and economic benefit provided by the houses. The suburban character of Crease Lane is
broadly conserved.

Officers also note that hedgebanks are retained or introduced along the roadside and other boundaries,
and the landscaping scheme provides an opportunity to provide ecological benefits and further
assimilate the development into this location. The ability to secure additional planting can be secured
through a landscaping condition and will ensure that the development does not prejudice the nearby
Nature Reserve at the old railway line. This is in line with the comments of the Council’'s ecological
expert.

Access and parking

The proposal provides adequate levels of onsite parking to serve the dwellings and adequate onsite
turning, preventing the need to enter or exit the site in reverse gear.

Officers are mindful of the level of third party representation which has been received which has
expressed concerns regarding the impacts of the development on highways safety. However, the
application has been carefully considered by the DCC specialist highways officer, who is not objecting
to the proposal.

After careful consideration, the highways officer has stated that ‘The application site is served by Crease
Lane, a classified road, C704. Its junction with A390 Callington Road is seriously substandard with
respect to alignment, Width and gradient, forming an acute angle at the point of intersection. This
access option to the site is not the only alternative, however, as it is quite possible to access the site
using Uplands, which is certainly adequate to accommodate the additional traffic from the four proposed
houses. There are therefore no objections in principle to the proposed development from a highway
point of view.’

The highways officer also asked for further plans clarifying the access visibility splays and this has now
been provided. The highways officer has now added that ‘The proposed accesses to Crease Lane have
now been provided with visibility splays commensurate with the prevailing speed of vehicles in Crease
Lane as requested in the highway authority's previous response and the plans are acceptable to the
highway authority.

Officers subsequently consider the impact on highways safety to be acceptable, and certainly not
‘severe’ as is required by the National Planning Policy Framework.

Design and massing

The proposed dwellings clearly take some reference from surrounding development but particularly the
roof profile of Fernside. The design is considered to be entirely appropriate within this suburban context.

Although slate is a divergence from the common roof finish in the area, natural slate is a high quality
material and it would not be reasonable to insist upon a concrete tile or artificial slate. Overall, the
design and massing of the proposed dwellings is considered to be acceptable.

Officer note the proximity of the development to the neighbouring bungalow to the west but, as the
buildings will be set down the hill, and a good distance away from this neighbouring dwelling, officers
do not believe that the scheme will lead to any dominance towards this property. Likewise, the proposal
will sit comfortably in comparison to Fernside and other surrounding residential development.
Neighbour impact

The orientation of the proposed properties, the location of proposed openings, the distance between
sites and the augmentation of boundary planting will ensure that the proposal will adequately protect

Page 10



the amenity of neighbouring residential properties. There will be no materially harmful overlooking, loss
of light or dominance towards these properties and an acceptable standard of amenity will be retained.

Drainage and Ecology

The site is within a Critical Drainage Area. However, the applicant has enough land within his control to
allow officers to conclude that it will be physically possible to site appropriately specified soakaways,
and this detail can be provided through planning condition. Officers can conclude, in principle, that
soakaways can be sited which will adequately attenuate surface water runoff and prevent flooding of
third party land.

Officers note the representations received regarding ecology. However, the application is submitted
with an ecological appraisal which provides a professional and qualified overview of the ecological
characteristics of the site and the impact of the development.

The conclusions and recommendations made within the report are verified by the Council's own
ecological expert. The WDBC ecologist has requested conditions, which are reflected within the officer
recommendation, with work to the eastern boundary captured within the landscaping condition. The
WDBC ecologist has had regard to the latest set of plans and all remodelling and removal of hedgerows
and banks when reaching this conclusion.

Other matters

The scheme makes a financial contribution to education but falls below the threshold for the requirement
for affordable housing provision, in line with government planning guidance. Nonetheless, four houses
will provide a degree of social and economic benefit to Tavistock. It will do so without challenging
Tavistock’s tourism offer.

Officers acknowledge comments made regarding future applications but this is not a material planning
consideration, and any subsequent applications for further residential development will be subject of
planning applications which will be judged on their own individual merits.

Officers note comments made regarding right to access and legal agreements for the transfer of
sewage. However, these issues fall under civil law and the granting of planning permission would not
prevent the landowner from needing various other permissions from third parties where necessary.

Conclusion

Building housing on greenfield land will invariably lead to a degree of loss of rural character. In this
instance, the development as proposed does not represent the harmful incursion of development into
the countryside but the consolidation of residential development on this side of Crease Lane, the
suburban character of which will be broadly conserved.

Overall, the limited environmental harm associated with the development of the land is outweighed by
the social and economic benefit of the housing provision. In line with the Framework, officers conclude
that the limited environmental harm will not demonstrably outweigh the social and economic benefits of
the housing provision.

Other matters relating to highways safety, drainage and ecology are deemed to be acceptable or can
be resolved to be acceptable through use of appropriately worded planning conditions. The proposal is
considered to represent sustainable development and is recommended for approval on that basis.

This application has been considered in accordance with Section 38 of the Planning & Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004

Page 11



Planning Policy

West Devon Borough Council Core Strategy 2011

SP1 — Sustainable Development

SP5 — Spatial Strategy

SP9 — Meeting Housing Needs

SP17 — Landscape Character

SP19 — Biodiversity

SP20 — Promoting High Quality Design
SP21 - Flooding

SP22 — Okehampton

SP23 — Tavistock

West Devon Borough Council Local Plan Review 2005 (as amended 2011)

NE10 — Protection of the Countryside and Other Open Spaces
BE13 — Landscaping and Boundary Treatment

H31 — Residential Development in the Countryside

PS2 — Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems

Considerations under Human Rights Act 1998 and Equalities Act 2010

The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 and Equalities Act 2010 have been taken into account
in reaching the recommendation contained in this report.

Conditions

1.

The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later than the expiration
of three years beginning with the date on which this permission is granted.

Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act, 1990 (as amended).

The development hereby approved shall in all respects accord strictly with the drawing
number(s) received by the Local Planning Authority relating to this planning application

Reason: To ensure that the proposed development is carried out in accordance with the
drawings forming part of the application to which this approval relates.

Prior to installation, a schedule of materials and finishes, and samples of the materials to be
used in the construction of the external surfaces, including roofs, shall have first been submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall thereafter be
carried out only in accordance with the details so approved.

Reason: To enable the Local Planning Authority to consider the details of the materials.

No works or development shall take place until a Landscape and Ecology Management Plan
(LEMP) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The
LEMP shall provide for the management and maintenance of and green infrastructure for
biodiversity and landscape purposes. The LEMP shall include:

(i) All existing boundary hedgerows, trees and tree belts;

(if) Submission of a lighting strategy for during and post construction (to show avoidance of light
spill onto boundary hedgerows and the surrounding area);

(iii) A timetable for the implementation of all hard and soft landscape treatment

(iv) Details of inbuilt provision for birds and bats;

Page 12



(v) Arrangements for stripping, storage and re-use of topsoil;

(vi) Materials, heights and details of fencing and other boundary treatments;

(vii) The location, number, species, density, form and size of proposed tree, hedge and shrub
planting;

(viii) The method of planting, establishment and protection of tree, hedge and shrub planting;

All elements of the LEMP shall be implemented and maintained in accordance with the approved
details unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority. All work shall be
completed in accordance with the timetable agreed.

Reason: In the interests of ecological and visual amenity

Notwithstanding the submitted details, the development hereby permitted shall not be
commenced until:

Percolation testing in accordance with BRE digest 365 will be required to support the use of
soakaways. The report should include the trail logs and calculate the infiltration rate. SuDS to
be designed for a 1:100 year event plus 30% for climate change.

If the Local Planning Authority concludes that the method of drainage approved as part of this
permission is undermined by the results of the percolation tests, a mitigating drainage alternative
shall be agreed with the Local Planning Authority.

The drainage scheme shall be installed in strict accordance with the approved plans, maintained
and retained in accordance with the agreed details for the life of the development.

Reason: To ensure surface water runoff does not increase to the detriment of the public highway
or other local properties as a result of the development.

No part of the development hereby approved shall be brought into its intended use until the
access, parking facilities, visibility splays, turning area, parking spaces and garaging
hardstanding, access drive and access drainage have been provided and maintained in
accordance the application drawings and retained for that purpose at all times

Reason: To ensure that adequate facilities are available for the traffic attracted to the site

Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 3 of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted
Development Order, 2015 (and any Order revoking and re-enacting this Order), no development
of the types described in the following Classes of Schedule 2 shall be undertaken without the
express consent in writing of the Local Planning Authority other than those expressly authorised
by this permission:-

(a) Part 1, Class A (extensions and alterations)

(b) Part 1, Class B (roof addition)

(d) Part 1, Class E (buildings incidental to the enjoyment of the dwellinghouse)
(e) Part 1, Class F (hardsurfaces)

(f) Part 2, Class A (means of enclosure) and;

(g) Part 14, Renewable Energy

Reason: To enable the Local Planning Authority to exercise control over development which
could materially harm the character and visual amenities of the development and locality.

Notwithstanding the details set out on the submitted drawings, the development hereby

permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the comments and recommendation set out in
the Ecological Appraisal dated May 2016 from Sunflower International.

Page 13



10.

11.

Reason: In the interests of ecology

Prior to the commencement of development, the following components of a scheme to deal with
the risks associated with contamination of the site shall be submitted to and approved, in writing,
by the Local Planning Authority. That scheme shall include all of the following elements unless
specifically excluded, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority.

A preliminary risk assessment/desk study identifying:

All previous uses

Potential contaminants associated with those uses

A conceptual model of the site indicating sources, pathways and receptors
Potentially unacceptable risks arising from contamination at the site

A site investigation scheme, based on (1) to provide information for an assessment of the risk
to all receptors that may be affected, including those off site.

The site investigation results and the detailed risk assessment (2) and, based on these, an
options appraisal and remediation strategy giving full details of the remediation measures
required and how they are to be undertaken.

A verification plan providing details of the data that will be collected in order to demonstrate that
the works set out in (3) are complete and identifying any requirements for longer-term monitoring
of pollutant linkages, maintenance and arrangements for contingency action.

Any changes to these agreed elements require the written consent of the Local Planning
Authority. The scheme shall be implemented as approved.

Reason: The site is immediately adjacent to a number of potential sources of contamination that
need further investigation and risk assessment. The condition covers the full range of measures
that may be needed depending on the level of risk at the site. If the LPA is satisfied with the
information submitted with the application they can decide to delete any of elements 1 to 4 no
longer required. The LPA may still decide to use the whole condition as this would allow them
to declare the information no longer satisfactory and require more or better quality information
if any problems are encountered in future.

Prior to occupation of any part of the permitted development, a verification report demonstrating
completion of the works set out in the approved remediation strategy and the effectiveness of
the remediation shall be submitted to and approved, in writing, by the local planning authority.
The report shall include results of sampling and monitoring carried out to demonstrate that the
site remediation criteria have been met. It shall also include, where relevant, a plan (a “long-
term monitoring and maintenance plan”) for longer-term monitoring of pollutant linkages,
maintenance and arrangements for contingency action and for the reporting of this to the local
planning authority.

Reason: Without this condition, the proposed development on the site may pose an
unacceptable risk to the environment. This is listed as a separate condition as it gives the LPA
the option to choose a later control point: i.e. prior to occupation, rather than commencement of
the development for the main phase of the remedial works.

If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be present at the site
then no further development (unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning
Authority) shall be carried out until the developer has submitted, and obtained written approval
from the Local Planning Authority for, an [amended] investigation and risk assessment and,
where necessary, a[n amended] remediation strategy and verification plan detailing how this
unsuspected contamination shall be dealt with.

Page 14



Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation strategy and
verification plan and prior to occupation of any part of the permitted development, a verification
report demonstrating completion of the works set out in the approved remediation strategy and
the effectiveness of the remediation shall be submitted to and approved, in writing, by the local
planning authority.

Reason: No site investigation can completely characterise a site. This condition is required to
ensure that any unexpected contamination that is uncovered during remediation or other site
works is dealt with appropriately.

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



SITE INSPECTION HELD THURSDAY 26 JANUARY 2017

2686/16/FUL - Land adjacent to Fernside, Crease Lane, Tavistock
PL19 8EW: Residential development for 4no. detached dwellings with
integral garages, external parking and new access of Crease Lane,
Tavistock

Present: Clirs Sanders, Benson, Moyse, Pearce, Mott, Roberts,
Baldwin

Apologies: Clirs Cann OBE, Parker, Hockridge
Town Council representatives: Clirs Benning and Squire

Officers in attendance: Planning Specialist - TJ, Highways Officer —
PT, Specialist Democratic Services - KT

The Chairman began the site inspection with introductions. The
Planning Specialist outlined the detail of the application and the reasons
for deferral from the previous Planning and Licensing Committee
meeting.

The relationship with Uplands was noted, and the position of the cycle
track was identified. The position of the new access to be created was
pointed out to Members.

The Site Inspection Group moved onto the site, then assessed the
position of the proposed access from across the road, and then travelled
a little way down the lane to enter the second part of the site.
Throughout the visit, questions of clarity were asked on drainage and
boundary treatments.

The Highways Officer responded to questions and outlined his views.

The Town Council representatives outlined their concerns in terms of the
access from the site to the town.

In concluding the visit, the Chairman asked that Members exit via
Crease Lane, and by doing so would be able to experience the junction
from Crease Lane that had been raised as an issue for a number of the
objectors.

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 5b

PLANNING APPLICATION REPORT
Case Officer: Wendy Ormsby Parish: Lifton Ward: Tamarside

Application No: 2323/16/OPA

Agent/Applicant: Applicant:

Mr Aaron Smith Mrs SJL Hamblin, Mrs ME Guthrie & Mrs AT
19 High Street Bucklow

Pewsey C/O Agent

SN9 5AF

Site Address: Land South Of North Road, Lifton, Devon

Development: Outline application (with some matters reserved) for residential development
(Class C3) of up to 20 dwellings with vehicular and pedestrian access to North Road, car
parking, associated landscaping and infrastructure, public open space and Accessible Natural
Greenspace - External access not reserved

Reason item is being put before Committee: Clir Edmonds has raised the following issues:

o To approve this will undermine the Neighbourhood Plan process
e Visual coalescence of Lifton with Tinhay which will adversely affect their rural character
¢ Drainage and flood risk issues
o Traffic/Highway safety
] | > Tinhay Down T s
N W K TN )V 4
/ Nl | \¢ 2 P t

/ Coombe | N / [
/’ \ Farm o’

Sewage / /71
/W Lo 0=

G L\ 2
I J ! 7<\Z.; A ¥
7 ) iyd N3 / L -
/] leortage o¢ TN
=K fLR9Y / Recreation >§\ S /‘5“\#4_ T\
Rose f/, Y Grduna /(D AL AT
i Leatf{

Lifton Fa'm \

Flemin ings

— L . Ve Vi
i o )
— b [[I \
\ o s
o ¥ iy ] | |
S —~Mill Leat Southern
—
———m 4‘ Bridge
/
= s6m [, o
T \EImi

Higher Weir _\
), S Cottages |

e Y e 150
Magping data () Ordnance Survey

Page 19



Recommendation: That delegated authority be given to the Community of Practice Lead Officer, in
consultation with the Committee Chairman to grant conditional planning permission subject to the
signing of a Section 106 Agreement to secure the following:

Section 106 Proposals:

o Provision of approx. 0.95 ha of Accessible Natural Greenspace and provisions for maintenance

e 40% affordable housing — 80% rented, 20% shared ownership

¢ Provision of new access

e 50% of dwellings constructed to the Optional Housing Technical Standard Requirement M4(2)
of the Building Regulations.

e Contribution of £9,830 toward secondary school transport

¢ Provision of on-site Public Open Space of a minimum of 24sqm per dwelling

e Contributions of £799 per dwelling towards children play facility improvements in Lifton

e Contributions of £111 per dwelling towards the maintenance of playing pitch facilities at Lifton
Recreation Ground

Conditions:

Time (reserved matters)

Submission of reserved matters

Accords with plans

Development to accord with zoning plan — housing only in yellow area.

Development of houses limited to identified area on plan

Details of highway, footpaths, verges, junctions etc. to be agreed and implemented

No other development to commence until access road has been laid out and constructed to base course
level, iron work set out, footway constructed to base course level and site compound and car park
constructed to satisfaction of LPA.

No dwelling to be occupied until highway, footway and associated infrastructure has been provided to
the satisfaction of the LPA.

Highway, footway and associated infrastructure to be maintained in accordance with condition above.
Programme of archaeological work to be agreed with the LPA and development is to accord with the
agreed programme

Pre Commencement — detailed design of surface water management system to be agreed with LPA
Pre Commencement — Detailed assessment of conditions and capacity of receiving watercourse at
southern boundary to be undertaken and approved by LPA

Pre Commencement — Details of adoption and management of drainage scheme to be agreed with LPA
Pre commencement — construction phase surface water management scheme to be agreed with LPA
Removal of PD rights: Extensions, outbuildings, hard surfaces, means of enclosure

Universal condition for development affected by contamination

Verification report (contamination)

Unsuspected contamination

Landscape and Ecology Management Plan to be agreed

Method statement for relocating the hedgebank at the site entrance

Details of boundary treatments

Arboricultural Impact Assessment (based on the final layout) with a Tree Protection Plan and
Arboricultural Method Statement

Tree protection and retention of trees and hedgerows

Construction Management Plan to be agreed and implemented

Key issues for consideration:

Conformity with the development plan, weight to be given to the Development Plan polices,
Sustainability including landscape impact, highway safety, ecology, drainage and flooding.

Page 20



Financial Implications (Potential New Homes Bonus for major applications):

It is estimated that this development has the potential to attract New Homes Bonus of £23,740 per
annum. The Government is implementing reforms to the New Homes Bonus scheme and the length
of NHB payments will be reduced from 6 years to 5 years in 2017/18 and 4 years from 2018-19
onwards.

Members are advised that this is provided on an information basis only and is not a material planning
consideration in the determination of this application.

Site Description: The application site comprises a linear parcel of land, wider at its western end that
extends along the southern side of North Road, Lifton. The site area is 1.8 hectares and comprises
greenfield land currently used for grazing.

The site boundaries are defined by mature hedgerows and trees to the north, east and west. To the
south there are some significant mature trees but the hedgerows are not continuous and are sparser.
The site contains a large oak tree subject to a Tree Preservation Order

To the north of North Road, opposite the site, are a row of detached houses of various architectural
styles, these are the north eastern extremity of Lifton. To the south east the application site adjoins the
curtilage of Blue Hayes, a dwelling located in the nearby village of Tinhay. The northern part of the
west boundary adjoins the curtilage of the dwelling Dereton and here vegetation screening is limited.
The remaining southern site boundary, south western and north eastern site boundaries adjoin more
grazing/agricultural land.

The site is outside of but adjacent to the Development Boundary of the village of Lifton. Lifton has a
good range of local services including a primary school, doctor’s surgery and a shop.

The site is located approximately 200m outside of the Conservation Area and is not within a designated
landscape.

The south eastern edge of the site lies within Flood Zones 2 and 3,
The Proposal:

The application seeks outline planning permission for up to 20 dwellings on the site, with only access
to be agreed at this stage. Access is proposed from North Road, into the western end of the site.

An illustrative plan has been submitted to show how development might be achieved on the site. This
plan shows development only within Flood Zone 1 and concentrated in the north and west of the site.
It shows 50% (approx.) of the site as being developed, the remainder of the site (0.95 ha) is shown as
a large area of Accessible Natural Greenspace available for community use.

The development as illustrated does not extend beyond the eastern most dwelling on the north side of
the road, opposite.

The proposal includes a provision of 40% affordable housing. The housing mix is illustrated as being
4 x 1 bed; 8x2bed; 7x3bed and 1 x 4 bed of which 8 would be affordable and 12 would be market
housing.

50% of the dwellings would be built as Accessible and Adaptable Homes.

The illustrative layout includes a total of 37 parking spaces, much of which would be provided in
communal parking courtyards.

This application is supported by the following documents:

Page 21



lllustrative layout drawing

Affordable Housing Statement

Design and Access Statement

Draft Heads of term of Section 106 Agreement
Heritage Statement

Lifton Sustainability Statement

Planning Statement

Statement of Community Involvement
Ecological Appraisal

Hazel Dormouse and Bat Surveys
Hedgerow and Reptile Survey

Flood Risk and Surface Water Assessment
Housing Needs Report

Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment
Transport Statement

Tree Survey and Constraints Plan

Consultations:

County Highways Authority — No objection subject to conditions

South West Water — No objection subject to foul flows only being discharged to the public sewer.
DCC Flood Risk — No objection to drainage scheme as amended subject to conditions
Environmental Health Section — No objection subject to conditions

Police Architectural Liaison Officer — The maijority of the Public Open Space and Accessible Natural
Green Space appear that they will be well overlooked by paths, roadways and nearby dwellings but
there is concern with regard to the far east aspect of the ANGS

Landscape (WDBC) — No objection

Archaeology (DCC) - No objection subject to a condition requiring a programme of archaeological
work to be agreed and implemented

Affordable Housing (WDBC) — 40% affordable housing should be provided, normally 80% rented
and 20% shared ownership. There is a need to provide smaller 1 and 2 bed properties within the
area.

Environment Agency — No objections based on proposed layout which shows no housing in Flood
Zones 2 & 3. Recommends removal of PD for fencing and raising of land.

Ecology — The ANG is proposed to perform a number of functions, including as compensation for
the loss of 8.8% of an OSWI, to provide habitat to sustain an ‘exceptional’ population of grass
snakes, and to provide continuity of foraging and commuting habitat for the range of bat species
recorded on site.

With sensitive lighting, it is reasonable to expect that the wildlife value of the site could be
maintained taking into account enhancement of the remaining habitat. However it would be
necessary to understand the realistic management approach which will maintain the site in the
long term. The ability of the ANG to meet its purposes which depend on the quality of ongoing

Page 22



management. This can be secured through a planning condition requiring a Landscape and
Ecology Management Plan and Section 106 provisions to ensure on-going management

Open Space Sport and Recreation (WDBC) — The application includes an overprovision of public
open space which would be a fantastic new resource but questions how the site will be managed
as transfer to WDBC is unlikely.

There is a lack of formal play facilities in Lifton; a sum of £799 per dwelling should be sought towards
improvement and maintenance of play facilities at these sites.
A sum of £111 per dwelling should be sought towards maintenance of playing pitch facilities at Lifton
Recreation Ground.

Town/Parish Council — Objection because:

The proposal site is outside of the settlement boundary.

Concerns about the increased volume of traffic on North Rd., which serves not only a large number
of residential properties, but also the Primary School and Doctor’s Surgery. At peak times the road is
already heavily congested and parked cars in the built up area restrict traffic flow, which raises
serious concerns about the ability of emergency vehicles to access this area of the village. The traffic
assessment refers to the measurement of traffic in peak hours, but there is no identification of the
precise time. We believe that the assessment did not measure traffic movement at school leaving
time and its findings are therefore unreliable. DCC Highways would appear to have based their
consultee response on the strength of this assessment and therefore may also be flawed. Traffic
concerns figure highly in the 12 resident objections recorded on the planning portal and the same
concerns were strongly expressed by residents attending the PC meeting. The Headmistress of the
Primary School has written to the PC expressing concerns about traffic congestion, a copy is attached
to this submission.

There is a feeling that the proposed development conflates the settlements of Lifton and Tinhay,
thus harming the rural character of both settlements.

The proposed site is currently included in the SHLAA produced by WDBC in December 2014. The site
is considered to be unviable due to significant drainage constraints. The adjoining land which sits
below the proposal site floods on a regular basis, including the gardens and driveways of three
residential properties. On one occasion at least over the last three years, the source of this flooding
was identified as the watercourse which runs along the boundary hedge of the proposal site. The
Drainage Assessment indicates that this watercourse will be used for drainage of surface run off
water from the development. The PC are concerned that any development in this area will increase
the risk of flooding for properties situated to the SE of the site.

Safety of pedestrian access has not been adequately addressed by the proposal of a ‘virtual
pavement’ connecting the development to the existing footpath. This is confirmed in the Highways
consultee response as being unacceptable.

DCC Education: Both the local primary and secondary schools have capacity. No objection subject
to the following financial contributions:

Secondary school transport - £9,830

Representations:

25 letters of objection have been received raising issues which include the following:

Page 23



¢ Drainage assessment does not consider impact on existing dwellings outside of the site, in
particular Blue Hayes, The Bungalow and Bridge Cottage which experience drainage and
flood problems.

Maintenance of drainage features cannot be relied upon.

Sewer is at maximum capacity.

Upgrading pipework of neighbouring land will cause nuisance and disturbance
Alternative treatment plant would provide a serious health risk

No indication of where the sewerage pipes would be placed.

Ground disturbance during construction will cause run off containing silt, this will block existing
drainage ditch and will silt up lake on adjoining land which will cause flooding

Out of character with the area

Too small for the plot

Road too narrow to cope with extra traffic, many people walk on this road — will be dangerous
Not in Local Plan or Neighbourhood Plan

Adverse impact on character of Lifton which should not merge with Tinhay

School is not in decline

Will rely of use of private car

Shop sells limited range of goods

Will not improve the local environment

Will the right materials be used?

Site notices not adequate to advertise the application

Inadequate car parking

Virtual footpath is unsafe

Local services will not cope with added population

North Road is not wide enough for two way traffic — parked cars have been damaged
Adverse impact on wildlife, in particular that associated with the protected oak tree.

Will infill the visual break between Lifton and Tinhay and destroy their individuality

No public consultation

Density of development is inappropriate

20 houses is too many for Lifton

Will lead to additional development to the south

Added traffic may cause damage to buildings close to the road

Relevant Planning History

OA/3/39-/1974/520 — detached dwelling — Approved 1974
OA/3/39/1974/522 — Residential development — refused 1974
OA/3/39/-/11978/522/1 — Residential development — refused 1978
OA/3/39/1433/1980/522/2 — Residential development — refused 1980

ANALYSIS

Principle of Development/Sustainability:

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 states that, regard is to be had to
the development plan for the purpose of any determination to be made under the Planning Acts. The
determination must be made in accordance with the plan unless material considerations indicate
otherwise.

Paragraph 14 of the National Planning Policy Framework states that at the heart of the National

Planning Policy Framework is a presumption in favour of sustainable development, which should be
seen as a golden thread running through both plan-making and decision-taking.

Page 24



For decision-taking this means:

e approving development proposals that accord with the development plan without delay; and
where the development plan is absent, silent or relevant policies are out -of -date, granting
permission unless:

e any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits,
when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole; or

e specific policies in this Framework indicate development should be restricted.

Paragraph 15 of the NPPF states that:

Policies in Local Plans should follow the approach of the presumption in favour of sustainable
development so that it is clear that development which is sustainable can be approved without delay.
All plans should be based upon and reflect the presumption in favour of sustainable development,
with clear policies that will guide how the presumption should be applied locally.

The Borough’s current Local Development Framework identifies defined settlement boundaries and
states at Policy H31 that residential development outside the defined limits of a settlement and where
Policy H29 does not apply will not be permitted unless required for the essential needs of Agriculture
of forestry.

Policy H31 was last reviewed in 2011 and pre-dates the NPPF. The enforcement of strict
development boundaries is not considered to comply with the guidance within the NPPF as this does
not follow the approach of the presumption in favour of sustainable development. As such itis
considered that Policy H31 cannot be considered to be up to date and as such carries little weight.

The current position therefore is that an assessment as to whether the proposed development is
sustainable has to be undertaken. If it is, the presumption in favour set out in paragraph 14 of the
NPPF will apply and planning permission should be granted where the development plan is absent,
silent or relevant policies, as in this case, are out-of-date unless ‘any adverse impacts of doing so
would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the
NPPF as a whole.” However, if it was concluded that the proposal would not result in sustainable
development, the presumption in favour would not apply.

The main issue, therefore, in respect of whether the development is acceptable in principle is whether
the proposal represents sustainable development and if it is, whether there are significant and
demonstrable adverse impacts that would outweigh its benefits.

Sustainable Development

Lifton is identified in the LDF as a Local Centre, being a settlement which plays a significant role in
providing local services for surrounding smaller rural villages. Its facilities include a primary school, a
shop, and doctor’s surgery. A regular bus service links Lifton to larger towns and there are
employment opportunities at nearby Tinhay. Lifton is therefore a sustainable location for housing
development.

In 2011 the LDF identified that a limited amount of development in Lifton would assist its role as a
Local Centre but no sites were allocated for development at that time.

Paragraph 7 of the Framework identifies three dimensions to sustainable development — economic,
social and environmental — whilst Paragraph 12 sets out twelve core planning principles that should
underpin planning decisions. These two paragraphs set the context in which to consider sustainability.
The three dimensions stated in Paragraph 7 are considered below:

Page 25



The Economic Role

Housing development is recognised as an important driver of economic growth and there would be
economic benefits to the construction industry from the proposed development. Once the dwellings
were occupied there would be an increase in the level of disposable income from the occupants which
would be likely to be spent in the local area with some increase in the demand for local goods and
services.

The development will result in the loss of some 1.8 hectares of pasture land; the land in more recent
years appears to have been used for the grazing of horses and as such is not used for commercial
purposes.

There is no evidence that the development would result in any significant adverse economic impact.
Economic benefit will be derived from the construction process and from spending of future residents.
In respect of this element of sustainable development the balance is considered to be in favour of the
development.

The Social Role

Provision of housing including affordable housing and Accessible and Adaptable Homes’.

The principal social benefit of the proposed development would be the provision of additional housing,
including 40% of the homes being affordable. These affordable homes will be 80% social rented and
20% shared ownership which are the most accessible forms of affordable housing.

It is also proposed that 50% of the dwellings will be built as ‘Accessible and Adaptable Homes’
(similar to Lifetime Homes) providing accessible convenient accommodation to a wide range of the
population including people with physical or sensory impairment.

Given the NPPF priority to significantly boost the supply of housing the additional dwellings to be
provided must carry significant weight in this balance. The Lifton Housing Needs Survey of 2013
identified a need for 9 affordable homes within the next 5 years; the need being for 7 rented (3 x 1
bed, 3 x 2 bed and 1x 3 bed) and two shared ownership 2 bedroom homes. The proposed
development will fulfil most of this need.

In respect of the social aspect of sustainability a number of objections have been raised including the
pressure on local services with the primary school and doctors being oversubscribed, added
congestion on highways that are already dangerous.

Provision of an Accessible Natural Greenspace

It is proposed to provide approx. 0.95has of Accessible Natural Greenspace (ANG). This would be of
great benefit to the community of Lifton providing a significant area of publicly accessible land.

Impact on existing Infrastructure

Consideration has been given to these concerns. Devon County Council have confirmed that both
the local primary school and the nearest secondary school have capacity for pupils that may arise
from the development; financial contributions have been requested towards transport for these pupils
to the nearest secondary school. DCC do not object to the proposal.

The issue of traffic congestion and danger to road users is considered elsewhere in the report and it is
concluded that the development will not result in any significant impact upon the traffic levels in the
area. The proposed new vehicular access is acceptable to the Highway Authority and meets current
highway standards.

Page 26



The site is within 400m of bus services to Launceston, Okehampton and Tavistock.

Impact upon Neighbours

The layout plan submitted with the application is for illustrative purposes only. The application does
not formally include details of the siting and design of the proposed dwellings and the relationship
between the proposed dwellings and those that exist around the boundary of the site. However it is
considered that there is sufficient area to accommodate the development with a layout that will not
have any significant adverse impact on the residential amenity of the neighbouring dwellings. An
assessment of the relationship of the proposed dwellings with existing properties will be undertaken at
the Reserved Matters stage when the detailed plans have been submitted.

Social Dimension Balance

Substantial weight that must be given to the provision of additional market, affordable and Accessible
and Adaptable housing. The site is well related to the settlement of Lifton with access into the village
centre and its facilities to ensure social integration. The social benefits of the proposed development
outweigh any social dis-benefits and weigh in favour of the development.

The Environmental role

With respect to the environmental role of sustainable development, the elements that are considered
to be especially relevant to the proposed development are impacts on the landscape character,
ecology and bio-diversity; heritage assets and surface and foul water drainage.

Landscape Impact
The application has been carefully considered and evaluated by Officers within the Natural
Environment and Recreation Team who have assessed the scheme as follows:

The site is visually well-contained, and relates well to the existing pattern of development to the west;
these issues are supported by the findings of the submitted Landscape and Visual Impact
Assessment. The proposed layout as shown on the lllustrative Site Plan adequately demonstrates
that up to 20 dwellings could be accommodated on the site without compromising the character or
appearance of the area, and the outline proposals for building scale and landscape design are
appropriate to their context. If approved at outline stage, careful consideration will need to be given to
the boundary treatments for plots 15-20 which lie in the public domain.

Despite the proposed area of open space to the south east and the vegetation associated with the
River Thrushel, there would be some visual coalescence between outlying properties in Tinhay to the
east and the new development when viewed from a short stretch of New Road, due to the low
elevation of the viewer. This should be mitigated with more robust planting (including new tree
planting) along the southern and south eastern boundaries of the open space in order to retain a
strong vegetated corridor between Lifton and Tinhay. Provided this can be achieved, | would not
raise an objection on landscape grounds to the application under policies SP17 and NE10 which seek
to conserve landscape character and natural features.

| would also raise no objection on arboricultural grounds subject to securing full arboricultural details.

Concern has been raised by a number of residents about the potential for visual coalescence
between Tinhay and Lifton and the adverse impact this would have on the rural character of the two
villages. This has been carefully considered by Officers; it is concluded that a layout as shown on the
illustrative plan would retain adequate green space between the two settlements to maintain visual
separation and further landscaping can reinforce this visual separation.

Page 27



Biodiversity

The Council’s ecologist has stated that with sensitive lighting, it is reasonable to expect that the
wildlife value of the site could be maintained taking into account enhancement of the remaining
habitat. This is subject to good future management of the ANG and as such it is proposed that a
Landscape and Ecology Management Plan be agreed and its implementation be secured through a
Section 106 Agreement.

Heritage

There are no listed buildings in close proximity to the site and the site sits outside of the Lifton
Conservation Area.

The application includes a Heritage Statement which analysis the potential impact on heritage
buildings.

The proposed development will have no significant adverse impact on either the Conservation Area or
the setting of any Listed Building.

The County Archaeologist has noted that the site has some potential for evidence of medieval
settlement and/or agricultural activity, as such a condition is proposed requiring a programme of
archaeological work to take place.

Drainage/Flood Risk

A small area of land adjacent to the south east site boundary lies within Flood Zones 2 & 3, however
the illustrative plans shows no houses located on or near this area of the site which is shown as
forming part of the ANG. For this reason the Environment Agency have raised no objection and have
stated that they consider the Sequential Test to be satisfied.

Significant local concern has been raised about the potential flood risk/drainage issues associated
with this development. There is particular concern about flooding of the properties close to the south
east boundary, which already experience flooding problems. These properties are located within
Flood Zone 2.

This site was proposed through the Local Plan SHLAA process as a housing site, the reason it was
discounted from the process was due to concerns about drainage. During this selection process no
detailed drainage investigations and/or reports were available to the Council.

The drainage issues and proposals have been thoroughly assessed by Devon Country Council who
are the Lead Flood Authority. Initially DCC raised a holding objection to the development but after
further assessment this objection has now been removed subject to planning conditions.

South West Water raise no objection to the proposal

It has been demonstrated that the site can be adequately and appropriately drained

Environmental dimension balance

The environmental role in considering where the development is sustainable is not clear-cut. The
benefits identified are either marginal or essentially mitigation as in the case of any
landscape/ecological measures to be applied to the development. Moreover, those benefits have to
be set against the loss of an area of open countryside, leading to a change in the local environment

Page 28



and landscape. That impact has been carefully considered and is offset by the lack of evidenced harm
to the environment. Whilst the application site is a pleasant piece of countryside the site itself is
neither so special nor the impact of the development so substantial, that its loss to development
would represent significant material harm to the identified areas of potential concern.

Sustainable development conclusion

In terms of the economic and social dimensions of sustainable development, it is considered that
there are clear benefits from the proposed development and that where adverse impacts in these
respects can be identified, there is no evidence to suggest that they represent a scale of significant
and demonstrable impact as would outweigh those identified benefits. Furthermore, given the NPPF’s
priority the additional dwellings to be provided must carry very substantial weight in determination of
the application.

It is concluded that the site is sufficiently sustainable to pass the first part of the test set by Paragraph
14 of the Framework. It is clearly sustainable in economic and social terms, the location of the
application site is sustainable and the adverse impacts identified including the change to landscape
character are not so significant as to undermine the proposed development’s sustainable credentials.
It is also concluded that whilst the impact on the ecological and biodiversity worth of the site is on
balance probably neutral, the impacts, given mitigation measures, are not so significant as to
outweigh the benefits identified.

Overall, therefore, on balance, it is considered that the proposed development is sufficiently
sustainable to pass the first part of the test as set out in the NPPF.

Other Matters

Traffic Conditions/Highway Issues

The only key issue not considered above in detail as part of the consideration of whether the
development is sustainable is the effect on traffic conditions and highway safety. The Highways
Authority have provided a comprehensive response to the application and have concluded that it is

acceptable subject to conditions and works to be carried out in accordance with plans that have been
submitted. The Highway Authority have commented as flows:

Page 29



Original Observations dated 15 August 2018:

The application is in oufline but 'means of access’ is o be considered in detail at the outline
stage

Although the application was not the subject of pre-application discussions with the planning
authority, it is supported by a full Transport Stafement considering the impact of the proposed
development. Broadly speaking the content and the conclusions contained in the Transport
Statement are accepted by the highway authority. The proposed access road geometry and
visibility is acceptable having regard fo the level of proposed development.

However, the proposals show the provision of a ‘virtual footway’ along North Road which is
not an acceptable design solution to the highway authonty. Virtual footways are not a safe
design solution and lead pedestrians into a false sense of security when the road is
inadequate in respect of width to allow cars o pass and they have fo use part of the footway
width. In addifion, their provision is not covered in the Traffic Signs Regulations and General
Directions 20186,

On that basis, the highway authority would wish fo see the plans revised fo remove the virfual
footway provision. Had the applicant or their agent contacted the highway authonfy prior to
the application being submitted, this adwvice would have been able to be passed on pror to
the application being submitted.

As the means of access is fo be considered in detail at the outline stage, the plans require
revision to remove this facility. The highway authority reserve the right to be re-consulted
upon this amendment having been made.

Further observations following receipt of the revised Transport Assessment and plan
AD95534-5K01B:-

The amended plans and documentation have taken on board the comments of the highway
authority in their first formal response. It is also worth pointing out that, due to the date when
the application was submitted, no site visit has recently been carried out at school arrival and
departure times, but conditions at those times had been observed previously.

The development has the potential to generate a very modest number of additional vehicle
movements at the school peak collection hour - in the order of one additional movement
every 8.5 minutes, using the trip rate (from TRICS) of 0.347 movements per unit between
1500 and 1600, even if all vehicles were to travel from and to the west (which they won't).

These additional vehicle movermnents would not give rise to conditions that could be
considered to be a severe residual cumulative impact (Para 32 NPPF) so there can be no
sustainable chjections to the proposals from a highway point of view.

Suitable conditions are recommended to be imposed on any permission granted.

No objection is raised by the Highway Authority.

Leisure and Recreation:

The application has the potential to include the provision of open space and play areas on the site,
which will be secured with a Section 106 agreement or offset through financial contributions towards
improved play provision locally. In addition offsite contributions for Sport and other outdoor facilities
are to be provided. The level of provision is acceptable to cater for the demand from the development.

In additional a large accessible natural green space is proposed as part of the scheme which will be a
valuable community facility

Page 30



The site is not allocated in the draft Local Plan nor the draft Neighbourhood Plan
The Planning Practice Guidance Note relating to the NPPF states that:

In the context of the NPPF and in particular the presumption in favour of sustainable development —
arguments that an application is premature are unlikely to justify a refusal of planning permission
other than where it is clear that the adverse impacts of granting permission would significantly and
demonstrably outweigh the benefits, taking the policies in the Framework and any other material
considerations into account. Such circumstances are likely, but not exclusively, to be limited to
situations where both:

(a) the development proposed is so substantial, or its cumulative effect would be so significant, that to
grant permission would undermine the plan-making process by predetermining decisions about the
scale, location or phasing of new development that are central to an emerging Local Plan or
neighbourhood planning; and

(b) the emerging plan is at an advanced stage but is not yet formally part of the development plan for
the area.

Refusal of planning permission on grounds of prematurity will seldom be justified where a draft Local
Plan has yet to be submitted for examination, or in the case of a Neighbourhood Plan, before the end
of the local planning authority publicity period.

Having regard to this guidance there is no justification to refuse this application on grounds of
prematurity or non-conformity with these emerging plans

The Planning Balance and Conclusion

The application seeks outline planning permission, i.e. to establish the principle of whether the
development of the site for up to 20 dwellings, is acceptable. The only detailed matter to be
considered is the access to the site.

Whilst the indicative plan simply demonstrates how housing, landscaping, open space and footpaths
could be accommodated upon the land, the details of the layout, scale and appearance of buildings
will be subject to a separate Reserved Matters application to be considered on its merits.

The proposed development would conflict with Development Plan policy and would result in
residential development outside the development boundary. It is considered that policies within the
Development Plan which strictly control the location of housing without regard to the presumption in
favour of sustainable development have to be seen as out of date.

In such circumstances the NPPF sets out that the issue to consider is whether the proposal
represents sustainable development and if it does there is a presumption in favour of the scheme.

For the reasons as set out in the report, it is considered that the proposal does satisfy the three
dimensions of sustainable development. Given the view taken that the development is sustainable the
question to be considered is whether there are any adverse impacts that would significantly and
demonstrably outweigh the benefits of the proposal when assessed against the policies in the NPPF
as a whole.

No overriding technical objections have been raised and the impacts of the development have been
assessed. There are no adverse impacts that would outweigh the benefits of the scheme.

With regard to the objections raised in the letters of representation, the main areas of concern have
been addressed above.

Page 31



Therefore, in conclusion, the application is recommended for approval, subject to conditions and a
section 106 agreement.

This application has been considered in accordance with Section 38 of the Planning &
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004

Planning Policy
West Devon Borough Council Core Strategy 2011

SP1 — Sustainable Development

SP2 — Decentralised and Renewable Low Carbon energy to Supply New Developments
SP6 —Density of Housing Development

SP7 — Strategic Distribution of Housing

SP9 — Meeting Housing Needs

SP15 — Traffic Management

SP16 — Safer Communities

SP17 — Landscape Character

SP18 — The Heritage and Historical Character of West Devon

SP20 — Promoting High Quality Design

West Devon Borough Council Local Plan Review 2005(as amended 2011)

NE10 — Protection of the Countryside and Other Open Spaces
BE1 — Conservation Areas

BE3 - Listed Buildings

BE7 — Archaeology and Sites of Local Importance

BE13 — Landscaping and Boundary Treatment

H26 — Open Space Provision in New Residential Developments
H31 — Residential Development outside Defined Settlements
T1 —Walking and Cycling

T2 — Pedestrian and Cyclist Safety

T7 — Railways

T8 — Car Parking

T9 — The Highway Network

PS2 — Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems

PS3 — Sewage Disposal

Considerations under Human Rights Act 1998 and Equalities Act 2010
The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 and Equalities Act 2010 have been taken into account
in reaching the recommendation contained in this report.

Proposed Conditions:

1. Application for approval of the reserved matters shall be made not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of grant of outline planning permission. The development to
which this permission relates must be begun not later than whichever is the later of the following
dates:

(I) the expiration of three years from the date of the grant of outline planning permission; or if
later

(1) the expiration of two years from the final approval of the reserved matters or, in the case of
approval on different dates, the final approval of the last such matter to be approved.
Reason: To comply with Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act, 1990 (as amended).

Page 32



2. The development hereby authorised shall be carried out in accordance with detailed drawings
which shall previously have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority.
These detailed drawings shall show the following:

i) the design and external appearance of the proposed buildings;

ii) their siting;

iii) existing and proposed (i) site levels together with proposed (ii) slab levels;

iv) the materials for their construction;

v) The arrangements for the disposal of foul water;

vi) the areas for (i) parking (ii) and turning of vehicles in accordance with Devon County Council's
parking standards;

vii) all other works including walls, fences means of enclosure and screening;

viii) the location, extent and layout of open spaces and play spaces; and

ix) the design, layout, levels, gradients, materials, drainage, lighting and method of construction
of all new roads and connection with existing roads.

x) Full detail of all play areas

xi) Provision of ducting for high speed broadband

Reason: To ensure that adequate information is available for the proper consideration of the
detailed proposals and to protect the appearance and character of the area

3. The development hereby approved shall in all respects accord with (the drawings associated
with this application).

Reason: To ensure that the proposed development is carried out in accordance with the
drawings forming part of the application to which this approval relates.

4. Development of land for housing shall only take place within the area shown hatched in yellow
on drawing number 1400803-10 and the area hatched in green on that drawing shall be
retained as green space.

Reason: To ensure a visual separation between the villages of Lifton and Tinhay is
maintained so as to conserve the character of the area and to ensure no development takes
place within Flood Zones 2 & 3 in the interest of safety.

5. The proposed estate roads, footways (including alterations to existing footways), footpaths,
verges, junctions, street lighting, sewers, drains, retaining walls, service routes, surface water
outfall, road maintenance vehicle overhand margins, embankments, visibility splays,
accesses, car parking and street furniture shall be constructed and laid out in accordance with
details to be approved by the LPA in writing before their construction begins. For this purpose
plans and sections indicating as appropriate, the design, layout, levels, gradients, materials
and method construction shall be submitted to the LPA.

Reason: To ensure that adequate information is available for the proper consideration of the
detailed proposals

6. No other part of the development hereby approved shall be commenced until.
A) The access road (including any temporary construction access road) has been laid out,
kerbed, drained and constructed up to base course level for the first 30 metres back from its

junction with the public highway

B) The ironwork has been set to base course level and the visibility splays required by this
permission laid out

C) The footway on the public highway frontage required by this permission has been co

Page 33



D) A site compound and car park have been constructed to the written satisfaction of the Local
Planning Authority

Reason: To ensure that adequate on site facilities are available for all traffic attracted to the
site during the construction period, in the interest of the safety of all users of the adjoining
public highway and to protect the amenities of the adjoining residents.

7. The occupation of any dwelling in an agreed phase of the development shall not take place
until the following works have been carried out to the written satisfaction of the Local Planning
Authority.

A) The cul-de-sac carriageway including the vehicle turning head within that phase shall have

been laid out, kerbed, drained and constructed up to and including base course level, the
ironwork set to base course level and the sewers, manholes and service crossings completed;

B) The cul-de-sac footways and footpaths which provide that dwelling with direct pedestrian
routes to an existing highway maintainable at public expense have been constructed up to and
including base course level.

C) The cul-de-sac visibility splays have been laid out to their final level.
D) The street lighting for and cul-de-sac and footpaths has been erected and is operational;

E) The car parking and any other vehicular access facility required for the dwelling by this
permission has/have been completed;

F) The verge and service margin and vehicle crossing on the road frontage of the dwelling
have been completed with the highway boundary properly defined,

G) The street nameplates for the cul-de-sac have been provided and erected.

Reason: To ensure that adequate access and associated facilities are available for the traffic
attracted to the site

8. When once constructed and provided in accordance with condition 7 above, the carriageway,
vehicle turning head, footways and footpaths shall be maintained free of obstruction to the free
movement of vehicular traffic and pedestrians and the street lighting and nameplates
maintained to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority

Reason: To ensure that these highway provisions remain available

9. No development shall start until a Method of Construction Statement, to include details of:
(a) parking for vehicles of site personnel, operatives and visitors;

(b) loading and unloading of plant and materials;

Page 34



10.

11.

12.

13.

(c) storage of plant and materials;

(d) programme of works (including measures for traffic management);
(e) provision of boundary hoarding behind any visibility zones;

(f) full details of any temporary site access for construction purposes;
(g) hours of construction and of deliveries to and from the site;

(h) location of any construction compound/site offices;

(i) details and the location of any generators to be used on site;

have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved
details shall be implemented during the construction period.

Reason: In the interest of highway safety and the amenity

No part of the development hereby permitted shall be commenced until the detailed design of
the proposed permanent surface water drainage management system, including details of the
exceedance pathways and overland flow routes across the site for the proposed surface water
drainage management system, have been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local
Planning Authority, in consultation with Devon County Council as the Lead Local Flood
Authority. The design of this permanent surface water drainage management system will be in
accordance with the principles of sustainable drainage systems, and those set out in the Flood
Risk and Surface Water Assessment (Dated July 2016 (Updated 06/01/2017), Ref 53057).

Reason: To ensure that surface water runoff from the development is managed in accordance
with the principles of sustainable drainage systems.

No part of the development hereby permitted shall be commenced until a detailed assessment
of the condition and capacity of the receiving watercourse at the southern boundary of the
development site is undertaken, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, in
consultation with Devon County Council as the Lead Local Flood Authority. This detailed
assessment must also identify, and commit to, any repair and/or improvement works to the
receiving watercourse which will be required to facilitate the development.

Reason: To ensure that the receiving watercourse is of a satisfactory condition and capacity to
receive the surface water runoff generated from the proposed development.

No part of the development hereby permitted shall be commenced until the full details of the
adoption and maintenance arrangements for the proposed permanent surface water drainage
management system have been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning
Authority, in consultation with Devon County Council as the Lead Local Flood Authority.

Reason: To ensure that the development’s permanent surface water drainage management
systems will remain fully operational throughout the lifetime of the development.

No part of the development hereby permitted shall be commenced until the detailed design of
the proposed surface water drainage management system which will serve the development
site for the full period of its construction has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the
Local Planning Authority, in consultation with Devon County Council as the Lead Local Flood
Authority. This temporary surface water drainage management system must satisfactorily

Page 35



14.

15.

15

address both the rates and volumes, and quality, of the surface water runoff from the
construction site.

Reason: To ensure that surface water runoff from the construction site is appropriately
managed so as to not increase the flood risk, or pose water quality issues, to the surrounding
area.

Notwithstanding the provisions of Schedule 2 of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 as amended (or any Order revoking, re-
enacting or further amending that Order), no development of the types described in Schedule
2, Part 1, Classes A-H of the Order, including the erection of extensions, porches, garages or
car ports, the stationing of huts, fences or other structures shall be carried out on the site,
other than that hereby permitted, unless the permission in writing of the Local Planning
Authority is obtained.

Reason: To protect the appearance of the area to ensure adequate space about the buildings
hereby approved and in the interests of amenity.

Prior to the commencement of development, the following components of a scheme to deal
with the risks associated with contamination of the site shall be submitted to and approved, in
writing, by the Local Planning Authority. That scheme shall include all of the following
elements unless specifically excluded, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority.

1. A preliminary risk assessment/desk study identifying:

All previous uses

Potential contaminants associated with those uses

A conceptual model of the site indicating sources, pathways and receptors
Potentially unacceptable risks arising from contamination at the site

2. Asite investigation scheme, based on (1) to provide information for an assessment of the
risk to all receptors that may be affected, including those off site.

3. The site investigation results and the detailed risk assessment (2) and, based on these,
an options appraisal and remediation strategy giving full details of the remediation
measures required and how they are to be undertaken.

4. A verification plan providing details of the data that will be collected in order to
demonstrate that the works set out in (3) are complete and identifying any requirements
for longer-term monitoring of pollutant linkages, maintenance and arrangements for
contingency action.

Any changes to these agreed elements require the written consent of the Local Planning
Authority. The scheme shall be implemented as approved.

Reason: The submitted report has highlighted additional works that are needed to be carried
out. The condition covers the full range of measures that may be needed depending on the
level of risk at the site. If the LPA is satisfied with the information submitted with the application
they can decide to delete any of elements 1 to 4 no longer required. The LPA may still decide
fo use the whole condition as this would allow them to declare the information no longer
satisfactory and require more or better quality information if any problems are encountered in
future.

Prior to occupation of any part of the permitted development, a verification report
demonstrating completion of the works set out in the approved remediation strategy and the
effectiveness of the remediation shall be submitted to and approved, in writing, by the local

Page 36



16.

17.

18

planning authority. The report shall include results of sampling and monitoring carried out to
demonstrate that the site remediation criteria have been met. It shall also include, where
relevant, a plan (a “long-term monitoring and maintenance plan”) for longer-term monitoring of
pollutant linkages, maintenance and arrangements for contingency action and for the reporting
of this to the local planning authority.

Reason: Without this condition, the proposed development on the site may pose an
unacceptable risk to the environment. This is listed as a separate condition as it gives the LPA
the option to choose a later control point: i.e. prior to occupation, rather than commencement
of the development for the main phase of the remedial works.

If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be present at the
site then no further development (unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning
Authority) shall be carried out until the developer has submitted, and obtained written approval
from the Local Planning Authority for, an [amended] investigation and risk assessment and,
where necessary, a[n amended] remediation strategy and verification plan detailing how this
unsuspected contamination shall be dealt with.

Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation strategy and
verification plan and prior to occupation of any part of the permitted development, a verification
report demonstrating completion of the works set out in the approved remediation strategy and
the effectiveness of the remediation shall be submitted to and approved, in writing, by the local
planning authority.

Reason: No site investigation can completely characterise a site. This condition is required to
ensure that any unexpected contamination that is uncovered during remediation or other site
works is dealt with appropriately.

No works or development shall take place until a Landscape and Ecology Management Plan
(LEMP) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The
LEMP shall provide for the management and maintenance of public open space and green
infrastructure for biodiversity, landscape and informal recreation purposes. The LEMP shall
include:

(i) All existing boundary hedgerows, trees and tree belts;

(i) Details of the proposed new play area and equipment;

(iii) Submission of a lighting strategy for during and post construction (to show avoidance of light
spill onto boundary and internal hedgerows, to be informed by bat survey results);

(iv) Details of inbuilt provision for birds and bats;

(v) A concept statement explaining how the proposed landscape treatment, both hard and soft,
conserves and enhances the landscape character of the area;

(vi) Arrangements for stripping, storage and re-use of topsoil;

(vii) Materials, heights and details of fencing and other boundary treatments;

(viii) The location, number, species, density, form and size of proposed tree, hedge and shrub
planting;

(ix) The method of planting, establishment and protection of tree, hedge and shrub planting;
(x) A timetable for the implementation of all hard and soft landscape treatment.

All elements of the LEMP shall be implemented and maintained in accordance with the approved
details unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority. All work shall be
completed in accordance with the timetable agreed.

Reason: In the interests of ecological and visual amenity

Prior to the commencement of development a detailed method statement for the relocation of
the Devon Bank, necessary to provide visibility splays for the new access as shown on drawing

Page 37



19

20

number .... shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Development shall take place in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: In the interest of the amenity and character of the area and in the interests of ecology.

Prior to their installation details of all boundary treatments shall be submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Development shall take place in accordance with the
approved details.

Reason: In the interests of the character and amenity of the area.

Any reserved matters application seeking the approval of the detailed site layout shall include
an Arboricultural Impact Assessment based on that scheme which shall include a detailed tree
and hedgerow protection plan and Arboricultural Method Statement. Development shall take
place in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: In order to identify and protect trees and hedgerows of public amenity value and in the
interests of wildlife conservation.

21. No development shall take place until the applicant has secured the implementation of a
programmed of archaeological work in accordance with a written scheme of investigation which
has been submitted by the applicant and approved by the LPA.

The development shall be carried out at all times in strict accordance with the approved scheme
or such other details as may be subsequently agree in writing by the LPA

Reason: To ensure that an appropriate record is made of archaeological evidence that may be
affected by the development

Page 38



SITE INSPECTION HELD THURSDAY 26 JANUARY 2017

2323/16/0OPA - Land south of North Road, Lifton: Outline application
(with some matters reserved) for residential development (Class C3) of
up to 20 dwellings with vehicular and pedestrian access to North Road,
car parking, associated landscaping and infrastructure, public open
space and Accessible Natural Greenspace — External access not
reserved

Present: Clirs Sanders, Benson, Moyse, Pearce, Mott, Roberts,
Baldwin, Hockridge

Ward Member present. Clir Edmonds
Apologies: Clirs Cann OBE, Parker
Parish Council representative: Clir Moore

Officers in attendance: Planning Senior Specialist - WO, Highways
Officer — PT, Specialist Democratic Services - KT

The Chairman began the site inspection with introductions. The
Planning Senior Specialist outlined the detail of the scheme and set out
that the Group should view the site from the proposed entrance, the
proposed pedestrian access to North Road, within the site itself and
finally from New Road.

The Group proceeded as set out by the Planning Senior Specialist. The
position of the new main entrance was identified and the Highways
officer gave his view. Members noted the narrowness of North Road.
Members queried the safety of the pedestrian access and whether some
form of barrier would be included.

Once within the site itself, Members identified the proposed position of
the dwellings and other elements within the application. There were a
number of comments regarding drainage of the site.

To conclude, the Chairman asked that Members return to New Road and
view the site from that position. One of the key objections was the visual
coalescence between Tinhay and Lifton; residents were keen that a
separation between the two areas was maintained. This was best
assessed from New Road.

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



West Devon Borough CouncilAgenda ltem 6
PLANNING AND LICENSING COMMITTEE 7-Feb-17
Appeals Update from 16-Dec-16 to 20-Jan-17

Ward Okehampton North

APPLICATION NUMBER: 0830/16/PAM APP/Q1153/W/16/3155295
APPELLANT NAME: Mr A Jones
PROPOSAL: Prior approval for a change of use from storage or distribution buildings (B8)
to Dwellinghouses (C3)
LOCATION: Large Barn at Great Widefield Farmhouse, Northlew Road, Inwardleigh, EX20 3DA
APPEAL STATUS: Appeal decided
APPEAL START DATE: 06-October-2016
APPEAL DECISION: Dismissed (Refusal)
APPEAL DECISION DATE: 20-December-2016

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 Confirmation of Minutes
	5a 2686/16/FUL
	Appendix A - 2686/16/FUL SIte Inspection Report

	5b 2323/16/OPA
	2323/16/OPA Site Inspection Report

	6 Planning Appeals Update

